
High Peak Borough Council

CLIMATE CHANGE WORKING GROUP AGENDA

Date: Tuesday, 29 September 2020

Time: 6.00 pm

Venue: Virtual Meeting

PART 1
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. Other Interests

3. Minutes of the previous meeting 3 - 6

4. Climate Change Update 7 - 12

5. Procurement Strategy Review - Environmental Priorities 13 - 20

6. Air Quality Management Update on the AQAP Woodhead Road (A628) Tintwistle 
21 - 72

7. Date of Next Meeting 

MARK TRILLO
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER

Membership of Climate Change Working Group (HPBC)
Councillor T Ashton Councillor A Barrow
Councillor J Collins Councillor C Farrell
Councillor L Grooby Councillor M Hall
Councillor I Huddlestone Councillor T Kemp
Councillor D Lomax Councillor A McKeown
Councillor G Oakley Councillor K Thomson
Councillor S Thomson Councillor E Thrane
Councillor J Todd

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

High Peak Borough Council

CLIMATE CHANGE WORKING GROUP

Meeting: Tuesday, 25 February 2020 at 2.30 pm in The Committee Room - Municipal 
Buildings, Glossop

Present: Councillor A McKeown (Chair)

Councillors T Ashton, A Barrow, J Collins, C Farrell, M Hall, I Huddlestone, 
D Lomax, G Oakley and J Todd (arrived 2.33 p.m.)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors L Grooby, T Kemp, 
K Thomson, S Thomson and E Thrane

5 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the working group held on 3 February 2020 be approved 
as a correct record.

6 WORK PROGRAMME
(Agenda Item 4)

A proposed work programme had been circulated.

It was suggested that the working group consider the council’s activity 
around a number of key topics such as travel and transport, buildings, 
procurement, processes and the local plan,, and then consider the wider 
issues of reducing greenhouse gas emissions from the Borough.

Issues raised included::
 Funding – reference was made to the referendum to be undertaken 

by Warwick where residents would be consulted about an increase in 
council tax to provide a fund to allow the council to address and 
tackle climate change measures

 Potential for the use of clean hydrogen and measures required to 
make hydrogen useable – reference was also made to the projects 
being undertaken by Keele University

 Workplace Parking Levy – example Nottingham 
 Developing technology and investment options

It was agreed that the first priority for review would be the council’s activity 
around travel and transport, including vehicles and staff travel.  This would 
include: 

 fleet renewal procurement and infrastructure requirements, 
 staff travel including patterns of travel, numbers of miles travelled, 

CO2 emissions – to include private and fleet vehicles
 installation of EV charge points

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Climate Change Working Group
Tuesday, 25 February 2020

2

 taxi licensing – potential for moving to EVs, timescales, policy 
implications – probable referral to Licensing Committee to make 
recommendations back to this group in due course 

The second priority area is buildings – to include council buildings and 
housing stock in terms of energy efficiency and green energy.

The third priority areas is to consider investment opportunities.

Reference was made to the upcoming review of the local plan and the need 
to identify how climate change impacts on the local plan.  Further 
clarification was also requested around the limitations on local authorities 
powers within the planning process.  A briefing paper would be circulated.

Details of any changes to grass cutting schedules was requested and 
members were informed that mowing was being reduced on verges 
maintained by the borough council to allow a greater abundance of 
wildflowers.  No changes to the DCC schedule had been advised.

It was requested that officers provide members with a list of recommended 
reading to allow preparation for the topics to be scrutinised.

Consideration was given to the use of experts to advise on process.  It was 
agreed that expert witnesses be invited to advise as required and that a 
representative of the High Peak Green Network be invited to observe 
meetings of this group, and to be given an opportunity to provide members 
with an update relevant to the topic being discussed at each particular 
meeting.

RESOLVED:

1. The priority areas for scrutiny to date be:
1. Council Activity in relation to travel and transport, and to also 

include wider issues such as the installation of EV charge 
points and taxi licensing issues (during March)

2. Buildings – energy efficiency and green energy to include 
housing stock (during April)

3. Energy Investment Opportunities (during May)

2. A briefing paper on the impact of climate change on the local plan, 
and an explanation of the council’s powers within the planning 
process be circulated;

3. a recommended reading list be circulated to members;

4. That a representative of High Peak Green Energy Network be invited 
to observe meetings of the Working Group and to give an update on 
the topic relevant to each meeting;

5. Expert advisors be invited to attend as appropriate.

Page 4



Climate Change Working Group
Tuesday, 25 February 2020

3

7 PROGRESS UPDATE
(Agenda Item 5)

A Climate Change update report was being submitted to the meeting of Full 
Council on 27 February, and it was anticipated that a citizens panel would 
be convened August / September 2020.

8 DATE OF NEXT MEETING
(Agenda Item 6)

RESOLVED:

That the next meeting be held on a date to be agreed at 6 pm in Buxton.

The meeting concluded at 3.40 pm

CHAIRMAN
FIELD_TITLE

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Climate Change Working Group

29th September  2020

TITLE: Climate Change Update

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor JEAN TODD - Executive Councillor 
for Climate Change, Environment and 
Community Safety

CONTACT OFFICER: Mark Forrester - Head of Democratic & 
Community Services

WARDS INVOLVED: None Specific

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To provide a progress report following the first Climate Change Working 
Group meeting.

2. Recommendation

2.1 To discuss and note the actions taken to date.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 On 15th October 2019 recognising the serious threat posed by climate 
change High Peak Borough Council declared a climate emergency

3.2 The first meeting of the Council’s Climate Change Working Group was 
held 4th February 2020 and the Council produced an interim plan for 
2020/21 with the aim of producing a full plan for 2021/22. A point by point 
update is provided at 5.4 below.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1  Aim 4: Protect and improve the environment including responding to the 
climate emergency.

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



MARK TRILLO
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

5. Detail

5.1 On 15th October 2019 recognising the serious threat posed by climate 
change, the responsibility our institutions, businesses and communities 
have to eliminate net CO2 emissions and also the need to take immediate 
measures to prepare for climate change impacts, High Peak Borough 
Council declared a climate emergency.

5.2 The first meeting of the Council’s Climate Change Working Group was 
held 4th February 2020 and the Council produced an interim plan for 
2020/21 with the aim of producing a full plan for 2021/22.

5.3 The interim plan was based on the recognition that during 2020 there is a 
significant opportunity to ensure the Councils commitment to net zero CO2 
emissions is embedded in key plans and policies as they are reviewed or 
developed. The plan included a series of proposed actions.

5.4 The Covid-19 pandemic has delayed progress on a number of actions:

5.4.1 The 10 year fleet replacement programme - this is an opportunity to 
plan the purchase of more fuel efficient vehicles with an ambition to 
use Electric Vehicles or non CO2 producing vehicles towards the end 
of that period.

Following an initial meeting with HPBC Officers the Energy Saving Trust 
has offered to review the Councils fleet, type and use of vehicles, travel 
distances and patterns, and advise on a transition. The data and 
information required is being complied by AES and the Energy Saving 
Trust will start to analyse this in late September 2020.

5.4.2 Procurement strategy update – this is an opportunity to ensure 
products and services with zero or lowest greenhouse gas impacts 
are favoured in purchasing decisions.

A consultation paper has been produced which outlines potential elements 
of a new procurement strategy including measures to reduce the councils 
greenhouse gas emissions (technically - scope 2 & 3 emissions). The 
paper will be available for discussion at the next Climate Change Working 
Group.

Page 8



5.4.3 Asset management strategy – this is an opportunity to consider 
measures to save energy costs when replacing plant or machinery, 
energy efficiency measures and possible investment in 
photovoltaics.

When the stock condition work is completed the Asset Management Plan 
will be reviewed – Targeted for 2021.

5.4.4 Energy: APO Framework – Total Gas and Power are our suppliers, at 
the end of the contract period there is an opportunity to consider 
switching to a green energy supplier.

Considered as part of the procurement strategy (separate agenda item). 
The current electricity supply source mix includes 47% renewable and 9% 
nuclear.

5.4.5 AES parks management contract – an opportunity to include 
appropriate action to encourage biodiversity and resilience (reduce 
mowing, encourage wild flowers and trees). 

Staffordshire Wildlife Trust has been engaged to provide advice and 
potentially to oversee a pilot programme in the management of council 
land in Staffordshire Moorlands with the aim of supporting nature recovery 
and biodiversity. The work is expected to provide learning for officers and 
policy development which will be transferrable to HPBC.

Some areas of land owned by HPBC are already managed by Derbyshire 
Wildlife Trust, so we will also be calling on them to help us with biodiversity 
planning for instance with green corridors and areas of open space. We 
have also been approached by BCA Biodiversity Group who are also very 
keen to assist in this respect and other ecologists based in the High Peak. 
We could therefore form a sub-group to discuss this aspect.  

5.4.6 Treasury Management Strategy – an opportunity to consider 
investments in green energy and other projects.

Work has begun to revise the Medium Term Financial Plan in the context 
of the Covid-19 impact.  See 7.4.11 (below)

5.4.7 A new Facilities Management Contract – an opportunity consider 
practices and products can reduce our CO2 footprint. 

Discussions have commenced with Norse Group to look at the options to 
achieve this aim.

5.4.8 The Housing Stock conditions survey has identified a relatively low 
energy efficiency rating (SAP rating) for HPBC housing stock. 
Consider options for a programme to further improve energy 
efficiency in Council Housing.

Page 9



The Government launched the Local Authority Led - Green Homes Grant 
scheme in August.  The LAEP discussion concluded that the partnership is 
not in a position to bid in round 1 (September 2020) but should look to 
make a bid in round 2. Funding for round 2 will be manged by the Midlands 
Energy Hub. 

One of the key priorities as a result of the High Peak Borough Council 
Housing stock condition surveys was to improve energy ratings. Officers 
are undertaking preparatory with the aim of bidding for funds under the 
scheme – this involves not just the EPC ratings but the type and cost of 
measures which would be needed for the various property types.

Funding must be targeted at the least energy efficient housing, those with 
an energy performance certificate rating of Band E, F or G. The Council 
has identified 157 properties in these energy rating bands. Funding must 
be targeted at households with a combined household annual low-income 
of no more than £30,000

Officers are also working with County colleagues to support the Green 
Home Grants that are available directly to individual households – 
preparing scripts for our customers service staff, website information and 
publicity.

5.4.9 Secure data on the Council’s CO2 emissions – travel, buildings, 
operations and procurement – and use this to inform Council CO2 
reduction targets and performance management.

We have data for staff travel, fleet vehicles and buildings. A meeting has 
been held with the Energy Saving Trust to enlist their help in developing 
our staff travel policy and part of our Covid-19 recovery planning provides 
an opportunity to consider new ways of working which reduce CO2 
emissions.

5.4.10 Deliver staff training as required – priorities include training for key 
staff to be able to assess and report the greenhouse gas emissions 
associated with Council operations, policies and plans in order to 
inform decision making.

On hold due to impact of Covid-19 but new contact has been made with 
Keele University to provide training.

5.4.11Undertake investigative work and where possible feasibility testing of 
the most obvious large scale projects which a council might 
undertake:

 Green energy – the potential for Council investment in solar 
energy projects and wind farms.

Officers have secured national grid data on the location of the energy 
grid and in particular electricity sub stations – this is being mapped 

Page 10



initially against the local Plan and Council owned land. An advisor from 
the Midlands Energy Hub will be assisting the Alliance Councils to 
make an initial assessment of potential locations for solar farms. 
(Proximity to a sub station is on of the key factors in determining the 
commercial viability of a solar farm - or wind farm). 

 EV charge points

The following EV charge sites are now complete.

1. Hope car park
2. Station Road car park, Hadfield
3. Miry Meadow car park, Chapel en le frith
4. Municipal Buildings car park, Glossop
5. Edwards Street car park, Glossop
6. Victoria Park road shops, Buxton
7. Canal Street car park, Whaley Bridge

One more to complete:

8. Due on 30/9/2020 - Sylvan car park, Buxton

An initial meeting has been held with the Energy Saving Trust to secure 
their assistance to develop a strategy and consider the viability of 
installing more EV charging points in the Borough. There is also an 
ongoing link through the County Partnership in relation to this work.

 Local offsetting of greenhouse gas emissions (none CO2)

There is an opportunity through the review of the local plan – the Energy 
Saving Trust has offered assistance with planning policy. 

5.4.12 Continue to develop partnerships with other councils (specifically 
Derbyshire County Council) – seek to use common frameworks, tools 
(including the Tyndall Centre Carbon Budget tool) and the opportunity to 
share costs/expertise.

Covid-19 has impacted the County partnership focus on climate change - 
renewed discussions are now ongoing about potential projects and the 
involvement of Midlands Energy Hub.

5.4.13 Council Heads of Service to encourage staff over the course of the year 
to identify and take practical actions to reduce CO2 emissions – 
encourage suggestions, investigate measures, share good practice 
across the organisation, flag good ideas which require authorisation.

Covid-19 has impact on this priority however there will have been a significant 
reduction in CO2 emissions from staff travel as a result of home working and 
virtual meetings. The lessons learned from this experience are being actively 
considered as part of the Council’s Covid-19 recovery work.

Page 11



5.4.14 Encourage local community initiatives to tackle climate change with the 
aim of mobilising community support.

To be considered through Working Group

5.4.15 Support the work of the Council’s Climate Change Working Group 
(including citizen panel/community engagement) and produce a 
comprehensive climate change plan and budget for 2021/22.

The Working Group has been impacted by the need to respond to the Covid-
19 pandemic.

Page 12



1

High Peak Borough Council

CLIMATE CHANGE WORKING GROUP

Tuesday 29th September 2020

PROCUREMENT BRIEFING NOTE

Joint Procurement Strategy 2020-2023:                                                                     
Considerations for Sustainable Sourcing and Environmental Actions

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 To procure in a sustainable way involves looking beyond short-term needs and 
considering the longer term impacts of each purchase. Sustainable procurement is used 
to ensure that purchasing reflects broader goals linked to resource efficiency, climate 
change, social responsibility and economic resilience, for example.

1.2 Procurement have the opportunity to influence all functions within organisations and 
throughout supply chains to deliver innovative products and services that meet the 
evolving needs of consumers and society.

   

2.0 Sustainable Joint Procurement Strategy

2.1 The Joint Procurement Strategy for both Staffordshire Moorlands DC and High Peak BC 
is currently being drafted.  A discussion paper will be released in the coming weeks 
encouraging Councillors to feedback and input into the Strategy prior to formal approval 
later in the year.

2.2 The focus for the next three years will be to continue to drive value for money and 
achieve financial savings, but to also consider environmental, social and ethical 
responsibilities to drive procurement in a sustainable way and effectively work with local 
suppliers to enhance the local economy.  

2.3 Environmental considerations in supply chain management and sustainable ‘green’ 
sourcing strategies will be one of the priorities over the next 3 years.  The focus will be on 
ensuring the Council’s sustainable procurement is further embedded, looking beyond 
short-term needs and considering the longer term impacts of each and every purchase. 

3.0 Current Position

3.1 To date, the Councils have been proactive in ensuring that suppliers meet 
environmental standards and legislation as part of the qualification validation, to ensure 
that we are not exposed to risk of non compliance or breach of Environmental Legislation 
for management of waste and any activity that may have a negative environmental 
impact.

3.2 As standard protocol all open issued contract opportunities above £5,000 have the 
following criteria questions as part of the qualification selection process:

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



2

 
Sub-Section Environmental  
Question Does your organisation have an 

Environmental Policy?
If yes, please attach a copy of the policy.

Question Does your organisation operate an 
Environmental Management system 
certified to an International or European 
standard (e.g. ISO 14001)?

If yes, please attach a copy of the certificate
If no, do you operate an equivalent 
environmental management system based on 
the principles of ISO 14001?  Please attach a 
copy of your equivalent environmental 
management system

Question Has your organisation been convicted of 
breaching environment legislation, or had 
any notice served upon it, in the last three 
years by any environmental regulator or 
authority (including a local authority)?

If yes, please provide details of the 
prosecutions or notice(s) served and give 
details of any remedial action or changes to 
procedures you have made as a result of any 
breach or notice(s) served.

 

3.3 Its should be noted that the environmental criteria is proportionate to the nature, 
deliverables and scope of the contract.  We do take into consideration the size of 

business and that some will not have polices or accreditations in place and we will look for 
alternative assurances from them that they operate to required standards and practices.  The 

questions are not to directly disengage opportunity for businesses to apply for contracts.

3.4 The Council implemented an electronic procurement platform in 2015, all processes are 
automated and there is no longer a requirement for hard copy tenders or bids to be 
submitted. Implementing a fully electronic sourcing platform to facilitate our 
Procurement processes has resulted in valued business efficiencies and is a direct win 
in terms of reduced carbon footprint, costs and improved efficiency by reducing paper 
based processes with streamlined electronic ones for both buyer and suppliers. 

3.5 This can be taken one step further through reducing business travel and commuting and 
using webinars or conferencing as meeting alternatives where appropriate, which has 
seen an evident increase in investment during the COVID-19 pandemic for the Council 
and other market sectors. Businesses need to be agile, flexible and lean in their 
operation, as a Council we need to lead by example if we are to work with our 
suppliers to deliver best value and reduce our negative impact on the environment.

3.6 Print rationalisation projects delivered over the last 3 years have resulted in a reduction of 
onsite printing and post distribution from our sites.  The Hybrid mail project has enabled 
the Council to ensure letter communication to the customer is produced in the most 
efficient, cost effective and environmentally friendly process.  The web-based system 
allows users to generate an electronic mail image from their desktop, send to print at an 
off site data capture and print hub, the items then enters downstream mail channels to 
end with door step delivery.  

3.7 The data capture / print hub operates its facility using energy efficient print production 
units and products all compliant to BS EN ISO 14001: 2004 standards.  The Hybrid Mail 
process has resulted in the Council being able to replace the old obsolete print units in 
house and replace with a reduced number new energy efficient print units. 

Page 14



3

3.8 It is important that the Council works with its key suppliers to understand environmental 
impacts through their supply chain. To demonstrate this as an example, PSL Print 
Management’s (our hybrid mail supplier) environmental policy states their commitment to 
ensuring that they deliver their products and services through a sustainable supply 
network.  The following quotes are included in the company’s Environmental Policy:

“PSL Print Management Ltd uses a number of paper merchants all of which merchants purchase, 
whenever possible, from ISO14001 compliant mills. The large majority of our paper merchants now 
supply recycled paper.”

“PSL Print Management Ltd traceability systems are third-party audited and are certified by The 
Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) Chain of Custody standards. A wide choice of FSC certified 
paper products are available and used therefore reassuring the user that the wood fibre originates 
from well managed sources.”

3.9 The current Energy Supply (Electricity and Gas) for Council Assets is procured through a 
national framework ESPO (Eastern Shires Purchasing organisation).  The purchase of the 
supply is made through Total Gas and Power (TG&P) who are the current contracted 
supplier to the Councils. 

3.10 Electricity supplied by Total Gas & Power has been sourced from a number of different 
fuels. This is shown on the following ‘fuel mix’ table.

TG&P:  Electricity FUEL MIX DISCLOSURE 2017/18

The data provided below is for the period April 2017 to March 2018.

Electricity supplied by Total Gas & 
Power has been sourced from the 

following fuels

Percentage of electricity 
supplied by Total Gas & 

Power

Average for the 
UK (for comparison)

Coal 10% 7.6%

Natural Gas 31% 41.2%

Nuclear 9% 20%

Renewable (see below 3.11) 47% 29%

Other 3% 2.2%

Page 15



4

3.11 The below chart shows the Renewable energy fuel mix disclosure from CP16:  1st April 
2017- 31st March 2018

3.12 The Contract arrangement is secured to ensure our public building supply is consistent 
and to obtain optimum pricing advantages by sourcing collectively with Public Sector 
bodies. Under this arrangement there are options to review the mix of energy sources to 
look to increase percentage of renewable sources, as part of the contract review 
arrangements we will be working with Asset Management and Finance to explore these 
options.

3.13 Whilst we already have some measures in place, the Council recognises that there is 
more to do, and so the actions we’re proposing as part of the updated Strategy are 
provided in Section 6.0 of this paper.

4.0 Carbon Emissions – Sustainable Development Goals

4.1 It is Procurement’s responsibility to consider the carbon footprint of products and activities 
and their effect on the environment when making sourcing decisions.

4.2 To help bring carbon emissions under control, the UN set a 2030 agenda for Sustainable 
Development to act as a blueprint to how the World can achieve a better and more 
sustainable future.  It addresses the challenges we face and sets goals adopted by all 
United Nations Member States;
 Poverty
 Inequality
 Climate 
 Environmental Degradation
 Prosperity
 Peace and Justice

4.3 In total 193 Governments have agreed to meet the UN’s 17 Sustainable Development 
Goals (SDG’s) by 2030.

Page 16



5

4.4 Procurement can make a real difference when cutting carbon emissions as carbon is 
associated with the assembly, packaging, transport, storage and handling of products and 
materials which account for a significant proportion of an organisations carbon footprint.

4.5 For many companies, the majority of their emissions and cost reduction opportunities lie 
outside their own operations. These are known as indirect or "scope 3" emissions. These 
include everything, from the development of a product or service through to supply chain, 
logistics, sales and distribution, and customer usage.

4.6 The Council (through AES and working with our Joint Venture partners ANSA) is working 
on a scheduled commercial vehicle replacement programme for Waste, Grounds and 
Streets replacement fleet over the next 4 yrs.   To date we have included ‘alternative 
options’ against standard specifications of vehicles for our front line services as part of the 
tender process.  

4.7 To take this further, the Council is looking to develop a Fleet Strategy to focus on a longer 
term vehicle replacement programme.  This will ensure that minimum environmental 
requirements for basic specifications of new vehicles includes that the required Euro 
standards on emissions are met and that opportunities to source alternative fuel options, 
hybrid or fully electric vehicles should be appraised.  We will be actively engaging a third 
party expert in this field to support this, the balance between operational, financial  and 
environmental impact is fundamental to inform considerations in sourcing strategies for 
purchase of fleet.

4.8 Working with our strategic delivery partners we can ensure that key targets and 
performance measures on carbon reduction, environmental impact reporting and energy 
usage is continually monitored throughout the life of the contract and to ensure that our 
front line and back office services are delivered with optimum value to our communities 
with reduced environmental impact.  

5.0 Government Regulatory Framework

Local Government Association (LGA):

5.1 The LGA passed a motion at its 2019 annual conference in support of the UN Sustainable 
Development Goals (SDGs) and the role of local government in delivering them.

5.2 This included a declaration of a ‘Climate Emergency’ and committed to supporting 
Councils in their work to tackle climate change by providing a strong unified voice 
for local government and sharing best practice across all Councils.

Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCRs15):

5.3 Under the revision of the Public Sector Regulatory framework for Contracting, there is 
considerable flexibility for contracting authorities to include social, labour law and 
environmental criteria in the stages of the procurement process and during contract 
performance than previous regulations.

5.4 There are also new obligations in the Regulations that require procurers to take certain 
actions to ensure compliance with various international laws. These include national 
social, environmental and labour laws.

Page 17



6

6.0 Climate Change - Our Procurement Priorities & Actions 

6.1 It is proposed that the revised Joint Procurement Strategy will look to contribute towards 
the key aim ‘protect and improve the environment including responding to the 
climate change emergency’ by ensuring that effective sustainable procurement practice 
is embedded in the Councils sourcing activities, as set out below:

Aim 4: Protect and improve the environment including responding to the climate emergency
Key objectives for

2019-2023 are:
In order to meet 

these objectives we 
will…

Our key priorities 
will be…

We will deliver this by…

Meeting the 
challenge of climate 
change and 
working with 
residents and 
business across the 
High Peak to 
implement the 
climate change 
action plan

Develop a Climate 
Change Strategy 
and an action plan 
of response to a 
declared climate 
emergency 

 Reduced carbon 
emissions 

 A deliverable 
climate 
emergency plan 

Procurement Strategy focus:
 Encouraging local organisations and 

businesses to reduce their carbon footprint 
 Set clear standards in our specifications to 

reduce or eliminate impact on the environment
 Products to be manufactured to embrace the  

circular economy 
 Reducing waste throughout the procurement 

cycle
 Work with our key strategic partners to 

establish clear links for sourcing strategies 
 Buying sustainable timber products
 Rethinking the needs of the organisation 

through demand management analysis 
 Aim for % reduction in fleet emissions to meet 

carbon neutral targets by 2030 – engage 
Energy Saving trust to support Councils in 
fleet strategy development

 Mitigate noise, air pollution and water wastage 
in manufacturing supply chains

 Work towards achieving ISO20400  
Sustainable Procurement standard for the 
Councils

6.2 The below summarises the Environmental actions, controls and measurers that we are 
considering as part of the Joint Procurement Strategy implementation over the period 
2020-23:

 Continuation of qualification of supplier’s minimum international standards for 
Environmental Compliance in qualification of suppliers and products e.g.: ISO 
certification; clean waste management systems and reduction in toxic waste disposal

Page 18



7

 Include specific scored selection assessment criteria for carbon reduction, water 
consumption efficiency, clean fuels, through our contracts

 Ensure specifications include required minimum standards to meet environmental 
and sustainable targets

 Fleet purchases meet relevant Euro emissions standards (currently EURO  6 for Light 
Commercial Vehicles) and alternative fuel options as standard against standard 
vehicle specifications

 Work towards achieving ISO 20400 Sustainable Procurement standard

 Include KPIs in contracts on carbon reduction targets through supply chain

 Source renewable and alternative energy supplies and natural heat / energy sources

 Switching from traditional lighting solutions in Assets to LED technology – benefits 
energy and cost savings (LED bulb uses 75% less energy) 

 Evaluation % weightings in selection process,  proportioned with higher emphasis on 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

 Advocate  Green Procurement policy – incorporating human health and 
environmental concerns into the search for high quality products and services at 
competitive prices

 Encourage and support Local engagement in our supply chain to reduce distribution 

 Construction projects design and product requirements for reduction on 
environmental impact included in Specifications

 Closed loop cycles  in contracts, keeping materials in economic systems and not 
wasting them at end of life 

6.3 It is essential that as a nation we tackle climate change and protect our natural 
environment as we need to continue to improve air quality, protect against flooding, and 
ensure our transport, waste and energy policies are environmentally sustainable. 

6.4 As a direct buying organisation we can lead by example to contribute to the reduction of 
negative environmental and social impact for our future generations, by maintaining 
ethical and sustainable sourcing approaches and controls with our supply chain.  We 
should be actively considering the importance of the longer term consequences of our 
procurement decision making now.

6.5 However, we do need to carefully consider the above in line with other areas of focus 
within the Procurement Strategy.  For example, another priority area is spending money 
locally, utilising local businesses – which in light of the impact Covid-19 has had on local 
economies is even more important.  By introducing some of the measures above, we may 
inadvertently exclude some local businesses and it may also have an adverse impact on 
cost.  All these competing factors need to be considered collectively to satisfy all priorities. 

Page 19



8

6.6 Feedback from the Climate Change Working Group in order to shape the Procurement 
Strategy would be very welcome.

Page 20



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Community Select Committee

23 September 2020

TITLE: Air Quality Management update on the AQAP 
Woodhead Road (A628) Tintwhistle 

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Todd,  Executive Councillor for Climate 
Change, Environment and Community Safety

CONTACT OFFICER: Alicia Patterson - Head of Environmental 
Health

WARDS INVOLVED: Tintwistle & All Wards

Appendix 1 – Air Quality Management Area (1) (Tintwistle) Action Plan Draft 

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To update the Committee on the progress of the Air Quality Action Plan for the 
Air Quality Management Area (1) Woodhead Road (A628) Tintwistle, attached 
at Appendix 1.

1.2 To further update the Committee on the proposed steps the Council is taking to 
address the air quality issues across the Borough.  

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Committee notes the contents of the report and provides any 
comments prior to submission to the Executive.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Environment Act 1995 places a duty on the Council to regularly review 
air quality within its boundaries against a number of national air quality 
objectives. This reports outlines and updates the actions that High Peak 
Borough Council will deliver between 2019-2023 in order to reduce 
concentrations of air pollutants and exposure to air pollution in the Borough.

3.2 The updated Air Quality Action Plan attached at appendix 1 details 
specifically the progress in relation to the Air Quality Management Area 
(AQMA) declared at the Woodhead Road, A628 Tintwistle (1). In addition, 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



the Plan details measures and proposals which the Council is taking to 
address the Air Quality Issues across the whole of the Borough. The 
updated Plan is in draft format, and has not yet been formally published. 

3.3 As detailed in the Action Plan results, the air quality within AQMA (1) 
Woodhead Road, A628, Tintwistle has improved significantly during 2019, 
with no exceedances of the Air Quality Strategy recorded. 

3.4 Further reports will be presented to the Committee and the Executive in 
relation to the Air Quality Action Plan for the AQMA (2) A57, Dinting Vale and 
the additional proposals for the declaration of a third Air Quality Management 
Area in the Borough at Fairfield, Buxton. This work is not yet complete as 
further data is required in order to prepare these reports, including an updated 
transport assessment to include the impacts of the Transpennine upgrade 
programme which is being led by Highways England. This will ensure that 
appropriate transport mitigation measures are adopted, and a further updated 
impact assessment is also being undertaken by this Council.

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1 Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High Peak.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no alternative options to consider, the Council is required by law to 
produce an action plan once an Air Quality Management Area has been 
declared. The Committee may comment on the contents of the Air Quality 
Action Plan.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

There are no community safety issues arising from this report.

6.2 Workforce

An existing pollution post has been converted to a full time post to 
support this area of work.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council’s Diversity 
and Equality Policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations

Page 22



There are no initial financial implications arising from this report. Dependent 
on the final actions, additional funding may be needed if appropriate grants 
are not available or secured.

6.5 Legal

The Council has a statutory duty to manage air quality in its area. Having 
declared an AQMA the Council must implement the action plan, and failure 
to do so may result in legal action being taken against the Council.

6.6 Climate Change

As detailed within the report, measures to improve air quality within the 
Borough will support the Council’s priority to address the implications of 
climate change. 

6.7 Consultation

As detailed within in the report, including engagement with key stakeholders 
such as Derbyshire County Council and Highways England to implement 
actions to improve air quality in the Borough.

6.8 Risk Assessment

It is a statutory requirement that the Council assess air quality and takes 
action where appropriate.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Contact details
Alicia Patterson
Head of Environmental Health
E-mail: alicia.patterson@highpeak.gov.uk

7. Detail

7.1 The Environment Act 1995 places a duty on the Council to regularly review 
air quality within its boundaries against a number of national air quality 
objectives. The objectives are human health based standards, seeking to 
protect the most vulnerable in society, i.e. the very young, the elderly and 
those with pre- existing conditions. 

7.2 This reports outlines the actions that High Peak Borough Council will deliver 
between 2019-2023 in order to reduce concentrations of air pollutants and 
exposure to air pollution, thereby positively impacting on the health and quality 
of life of residents and visitors to the High Peak. 

6.4

Page 23

mailto:%20alicia.patterson@highpeak.gov.uk


7.3 The updated Air Quality Action Plan attached at appendix 1 details 
specifically the progress in relation to the Air Quality Management Area 
(AQMA) declared at the Woodhead Road, A628 Tintwistle (1). In addition, 
the Plan details measures and proposals which the Council is taking to 
address the Air Quality Issues across the whole of the Borough. The 
updated Plan is in draft format, and has not yet been formally published. 

7.4 As detailed in the Action Plan results, the air quality within AQMA (1) 
Woodhead Road, A628, Tintwistle has improved significantly during 2019, 
with no exceedances of the Air Quality Strategy recorded. 

7.5 The Council has developed actions to improve air quality in the Borough, 
and specifically in both the AQMAs declared by the Council (the second 
being the AQMA (2) A57, Dinting Vale). These are developed against the 
following five broad topic areas: 

 Transport measures – changes to road layout or operation and 
formulation of traffic plans with the aim being to encourage the use of 
greener modes of transport, and/or reduce congestion and associated 
vehicle emissions;

 Leading by example measures – measures that HPBC will implement to 
encourage wider behavioural changes in the local population with 
respect to their travel choices;

 Education, community and partnership measures – provision of 
information to increase community awareness of the challenges faced 
on air quality within the local area, to facilitate behavioural change;

 Statutory measures – use of legislation and targeted enforcement to 
control air pollution; 

 Air quality monitoring – ensuring satisfactory air quality monitoring data is 
available to track outcomes of the implementation of our action plan 
measures and allow effective management of air quality.

7.6 Since the last report to the Committee there have been significant changes 
in the emission of air pollutants noted nationally from several sectors but, 
with the exception of the transport sector which showed a marked decrease, 
availiabity of activity and emissions data for the lockdown period is still 
limited. 

7.7 UK air quality has been negatively influenced by a significant change in 
meterology between the weeks preceeding and following the lockdown, in 
addition to changes (both positive and negative) arising from actions in 
response to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

7.8 The most pronounced changes in UK air quality during lockdown have been in 
the urban environment, notably for nitrogen oxides (NOx). Once weather 
effects are accounted for, mean reductions in urban NOx averaged over the 

Page 24



lockdown period have been typically 30-40%, which means NO2 reductions of 
20-30% in general. 

7.9 Whilst this report focuses on the data collected in 2019, we are anticipating 
and forecasting for 2020 and 2021 the expected changes as a result of the 
Covid-19 pandemic and the national changes in individuals’ behaviour, 
working arrangements and travel which will need to be considered for the 
existing Air Quality Management Areas and any future proposed areas. 

7.10 Further reports will be presented to the Committee and the Executive in 
relation to the Air Quality Action Plan for the AQMA A57, Dinting Vale (2) and 
the additional proposals for the declaration of a third Air Quality Management 
Area in the Borough at Fairfield, Buxton. This work is not yet complete as 
further data is required in order to prepare these reports, including an updated 
transport assessment to include the impacts of the Transpennine upgrade 
programme which is being led by Highways England. This will ensure that 
appropriate transport mitigation measures are adopted, and a further updated 
impact assessment is also being undertaken by this Council.

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2019

High Peak Borough Council
Air Quality Action Plan

In fulfilment of Part IV of the
Environment Act 1995
Local Air Quality Management

September 2020 -update

Page 27



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2019

Local Authority 
Officer Daniel McCrory

Department Environmental Health

Address Town Hall, Buxton SK17 6DZ

Telephone 01538 395400 ext 4413

E-mail Daniel.McCrory@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Report Reference 
number HPBC AP1

Date September  2020

Page 28



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 1

Executive Summary

This draft Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) has been produced as part of our statutory 

duties required by the Local Air Quality Management framework. It outlines the action 

we will take to improve air quality in High Peak between November 2019-2023.

Air pollution is associated with a number of adverse health impacts. It is recognised 

as a contributing factor in the onset of heart disease and cancer. Additionally, air 

pollution particularly affects the most vulnerable in society: children and older people, 

and those with heart and lung conditions. There is also often a strong correlation with 

equalities issues, because areas with poor air quality are also often the less affluent 

areas1,2.

The annual health cost to society of the impacts of particulate matter alone in the UK 

is estimated to be around £16 billion3. High Peak Borough Council is committed to 

reducing the exposure of people in High Peak to poor air quality in order to improve 

health.

We have developed actions to improve air quality in the Borough, and specifically the 

AQMAs, that can be considered against the following five broad topic areas:

 Transport measures – changes to road layout or operation and formulation of 

traffic plans with the aim being to encourage the use of greener modes of 

transport, and/or reduce congestion and associated vehicle emissions;

 Leading by example measures – measures that HPBC will implement to 

encourage wider behavioural changes in the local population with respect to 

their travel choices;

 Education, community and partnership measures – provision of information to 

increase community awareness of the challenges faced on air quality within 

the local area, to facilitate behavioural change;

 Statutory measures – use of legislation and targeted enforcement to control air 

pollution; and

1 Environmental equity, air quality, socioeconomic status and respiratory health, 2010
2 Air quality and social deprivation in the UK: an environmental inequalities analysis, 2006
3 Defra. Abatement cost guidance for valuing changes in air quality, May 2013

Page 29



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 2

 Air quality monitoring – ensuring satisfactory air quality monitoring data is 

available to track outcomes of the implementation of our action plan 

measures and allow effective management of air quality.

In the High Peak Borough Council AQMA No1 Tintwistle, our priorities are focussed 

on the reduction of emissions from Heavy Duty Vehicles (HDV) and diesel vehicles, 

and trying to improve traffic flow and reduce congestion along the Woodhead Road.  

However, 2019 data has showed a marked improvement in Air Quality with the 

AQMA, with no exceedances in the AQS observed.  

The responsibility for implementation of highway improvements rests with Highway 

England, which is in the process of updating the transport data and undertaking 

further AQ modelling in the AQMA in support of the proposed Trans Pennine 

upgrade. Therefore, any potential mitigation actions concerning improving traffic 

emission or flow cannot be accurately developed until this new information has been 

considered and available.  

In this AQAP we outline how we plan to effectively tackle air quality issues within our 

control. However, we recognise that there are a large number of air quality policy 

areas that are outside of our influence (such as roads managed by Highways 

England and vehicle emissions standards agreed across Europe), but for which we 

may have useful evidence, and so we will continue to work with regional and central 

government on policies and issues beyond the Council’s direct influence.

Responsibilities and Commitment
This AQAP was prepared by the Environmental Health team of High Peak Borough 

Council with the support and agreement of the following officers and departments:

Daniel McCrory

This AQAP will be subject to an annual review, appraisal of progress and reporting to 

the Council’s Community Select Committee and Executive. Progress each year will 

be reported in the Annual Status Reports (ASRs) produced by High Peak Borough 

Council, as part of our statutory Local Air Quality Management duties.

If you have any comments on this AQAP please send them to: 

Page 30



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 3

Daniel McCrory at:

Address: Town Hall, Buxton SK17 6DZ

Telephone: 01538 395400 ext 4413

Email: Daniel.McCrory@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 31



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 4

Table of Contents
Executive Summary ...................................................................................................1

Responsibilities and Commitment........................................................................................2

1 Introduction........................................................................................................5
2 Summary of Current Air Quality in High Peak Borough Council. .................7

2.1 AQMA No1 Tintwistle ...............................................................................................7
Figure 2.1 – AQMA No 1 Tintwistle ...............................................................................................8

Figure 2.2 – AQMA No 1 Tintwistle; monitoring Locations............................................................9

2.2 Monitoring Results..................................................................................................10

3 High Peak Borough Council’s Air Quality Priorities ....................................14
3.1 Public Health Context.............................................................................................14

3.2 Planning and Policy Context ..................................................................................15

3.3 Source Apportionment............................................................................................17
3.3.1 Data Inputs ...................................................................................................................17

3.3.2 Results .........................................................................................................................18

3.4 Required Reduction in Emissions ..........................................................................20

3.5 Key Priorities ..........................................................................................................20
3.5.3 Education, community and partnership measures .......................................................23

4 Development and Implementation of High Peak Borough Council 
AQAP.........................................................................................................................25

4.1 Consultation and Stakeholder Engagement...........................................................25

4.2 Steering Group .......................................................................................................27

5 AQAP Measures...............................................................................................28
Appendix A: Monitoring Results 2019....................................................................33
Appendix B: Reasons for Not Pursuing Action Plan Measures ..........................38
Glossary of Terms....................................................................................................39
References ................................................................................................................40

List of Tables
Table 4.1 ‒ Consultation Undertaken.........................................................................25
Table 5.1 ‒ Air Quality Action Plan Measures ............................................................29

List of Figures
Figure 2.1 – AQMA No 1 Tintwistle .........................................................................................................3

Figure 2.2 – AQMA No 1 Tintwistle; monitoring Locations ......................................................................4

Figure 3.1.  Source of emissions between Light and Heavy Duty Vehicles .........................................14

Figure 3.2.  Source of emissions between general Vehicle types ........................................................14

Page 32



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 5

1 Introduction
This AQAP has been prepared following the declaration of an Air Quality 

Management Area (AQMA) for nitrogen dioxide (NO2) along part of the Woodhead 

Road (A628) in Tintwistle.  

This report outlines the actions that High Peak Borough Council (HPBC – the 

Council) will deliver between. 2019-2023 in order to reduce concentrations of air 

pollutants and exposure to air pollution; thereby positively impacting on the health 

and quality of life of residents and visitors to the High Peak.

It has been developed in recognition of the legal requirement on the local authority to 

work towards Air Quality Strategy (AQS) objectives under Part IV of the Environment 

Act 1995 and relevant regulations made under that part and to meet the 

requirements of the Local Air Quality Management (LAQM) statutory process. The 

Act does not prescribe any timescale for preparing an AQAP. However, the 

Government expects them to be completed within 18 months following the 

designation of any AQMAs. The prime responsibility for preparing and submitting the 

AQAP rests with HPBC; however, there is a requirement on other relevant 

stakeholders to collaborate with HPBC to identify proposals in pursuit of the AQS 

objectives within their respective responsibilities and functions

This Plan will be reviewed every five years at the latest and progress on measures 

set out within this Plan will be reported on annually within High Peak Borough 

Council’s air quality ASR.

Page 33



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 6

2 Summary of Current Air Quality in High 
Peak Borough Council. 

The latest ASR report from High Peak Borough Council detailing air quality and 

pollution levels across the High Peak in 2019 is being finalised however, results for 

2019 are presented in Appendix 1 of this report and the key findings and conclusions 

of the report are detailed below: 

 With one exception** Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) levels reduced, and air quality 

improved, across the Borough during 2019.  

 In the two declared AQMAs, Tintwistle (No1) and Dinting Vale (No 2), only one 

exceedance of above the annual mean NO2 objective was recorded. This was 

in in Dinting Vale (No 2) at the A57 Dinting Vale /Glossop Road junction 

(HP26).

 ** In response to an exceedance at a single location along Fairfield Road in 

2018, the number of monitoring locations along Fairfield Road (Buxton) was 

increased.  The results from 2019 confirmed NO2 measured concentrations 

above the annual mean NO2 objective in locations with potential relevant 

exposure.  The monitoring data has been used to inform a Detailed 

Assessment which has identified potential exceedances of the annual mean 

nitrogen dioxide objective in 2019 at a number of properties along the Fairfield 

Road and the declaration of an AQMA is recommended.

Page 34



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 7

2.1 AQMA No.1; Tintwistle
The Woodhead Road (A628) is one of the major non -motorway trans-pennine 

crossings routes between Manchester and Sheffield in the Peak District and affords a 

shorter route compared to the motorway (M62, M1) route. It reaches a maximum 

altitude of 1486 feet and approximately, 12,300 vehicles use it daily, with around 13% 

of these being Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGVs);   

Air Quality Monitoring along the A628 in Tintwistle identified exceedances of the 

annual mean NO2 objective at relevant locations immediately adjacent to the road.  

This confirmed the findings of a previous Detailed Assessment, and necessitated that 

an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) be declared.   

HPBC Air Quality Management Area No1; Tintwistle was declared in October 2018. It 

covers a 580m stretch of the A628 between the Bank Lane / Woodhead Rd Junction 

and Old Rd/ Woodhead Rd Junction. This is shown in Figure 2.1.  In addition, 

monitoring was expanded along the A628. The monitoring locations are shown in 

figure 2.2.  

Page 35



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 8

Figure 2.1 – AQMA No 1 Tintwistle

P
age 36



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 9

Figure 2.2 – AQMA No 1 Tintwistle; monitoring Locations

P
age 37



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 10

2.1.1 AQMA No1; Topography

The topography of the AQMA is a general incline moving Eastbound along the 

Woodhead road.  Between Bank Street and Chapel Brow, there is a slight incline with 

gradient between (+) 0  to (+) 2.7% and the speed limit changes from  30– 40mph, 

with vehicles accelerating up a gradient.  

Westbound, the gradient is a slight downhill but the area is prone to queuing traffic, 

notably near the Back Street turn. (Figure 2.2aii).  

It is considered that it is the close proximity of the queuing traffic that is responsible 

for the previous exceedance at HP8, and high levels seen at HP31

Figure 2.3ai;  Church Street Junction East Bound 

Page 38



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 11

Figure 2.3aii;  Church Street Junction West bound (HP 8)

From Chapel Brow to Ebenezer Brow is approximately 250m, with the speed limit of 

40mph. The road rises steeply from a gradient of (+) 2.7% to approximately (+) 7-9% 

until just prior to the junction (Figure 2.2b).   

This junction is a Pegasus crossing (equestrian crossing), which is a type of 

signalised pedestrian crossing, with special consideration for horse riders. The traffic 

lights at the Pegasus crossing, means that traffic flow within this short 250M stretch, 

which is initially accelerating up a gradient, can potentially be disrupted. Causing 

traffic to slow down and potentially require significant power to pull away on a  fairly 

steep incline(+) 7-9% gradient, particularly for large HGV vehicles.

This location has previously recorded the highest emissions of NO2 along the AQMA, 

although it is not considered representative of relevant exposure.    

Page 39



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 12

Figure 2.3b; Ebenezer Brow Junction & traffic lights (location HP2)

*Traffic lights were being replaced at the time of the picture and were located at the sight of the automated monitor 
box on the left hand side of the picture

From Ebenezer Brow to the end of the end of the AQMA, at the junction with  old  

road,  the gradient remains steep  at around 7% and after only 50m from the junction 

are  flanked by properties immediately the Northern side (HP5) .   

It is consider that it is the increase in power required and slow acceleration of 

vehicles, particularly HGVs, on this gradient, is likely to significantly increase the 

emissions from these vehicles at these speeds. This is confirmed by source 

apportioning work (section 3.3). 

Page 40



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 13

Figure 2.2c;   Old Road Junction (HP5)

2.1.2 AQMA No1; Trans-Pennine Upgrade

Highways England are progressing with the Trans-Pennine Upgrade Programme 

(TPUP), which includes the A5/A628 Mottram Bypass and the A57(T) to A57 Link 

Roads.

The TPUP Scheme will provide a bypass of Mottram in Longdendale and new link 

road in an east to west direction from the A57(T) east of Mottram in Longdendale to 

Woolley Bridge, crossing the River Etherow on a newly constructed bridge. A new 

junction would be formed to the west of the existing A57 Woolley Bridge Road. Full 

details of the proposed TPUP can be found here: https://highwaysengland.co.uk/our-

work/north-west/a57-trans-pennine-upgrade/

The TPUP has the potential to result in a range of beneficial and adverse effects for 

Glossop and Tintwistle, including journey times to the strategic road network (the 

M67) and the potential for development that brings about economic benefits along 

Page 41

https://highwaysengland.co.uk/our-work/north-west/a57-trans-pennine-upgrade/
https://highwaysengland.co.uk/our-work/north-west/a57-trans-pennine-upgrade/


 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 14

the A57 corridor, journey times into Glossop town centre and quality of life for 

residents along the A57. 

The scheme formed part of Highways England Road Investment Strategy Period 1 

(RIS1) which set out the programme for improvements on the strategic road network 

over the period 2015 to 2020.   To undertake the works, Highways England are 

required to make an application for a Development Consent Order (DCO) to the 

Planning Inspectorate (PINS) who will examine the application on behalf of the 

Secretary of State in order to obtain permission to construct the scheme. HPBC (and 

DCC) are consulted as the host authority as part of the statutory process.

Construction was initially due to commence prior to the end of the RIS1 period, 

however, as confirmed by Highways England in July 2019, this was delayed.  This 

was due to concerns raised by HPBC and DCC at the consultation phase (pre-

submission) about the wider impacts of the scheme on the highway network, 

particularly the A57 through Glossop and the A628 through Tintwistle. This is 

because the Scheme and its likely improvements to connectivity and reduction in 

travel times to and from the Manchester conurbation could potentially make it more 

attractive to road users in Derbyshire and consequently increase traffic flows through 

the A57 Glossop and the A628 through Tintwistle to access the scheme. 

Highways England, therefore, delayed the submission of the DCO to undertake 

additional monitoring and modelling of traffic impacts and air quality along the A57 

and A628. It would be anticipated that should the new modelling indicate that the 

predicted increases in traffic along the A57 or A638 are likely to cause an associated 

increase in air quality pollution in the declared AQMAs (or other areas), a Scheme Air 

Quality Action Plan (SAQAP) would be prepared (in accordance with IAN 175/13) to 

mitigate these impacts. SAQAP measures could include reducing the increase in 

traffic in areas where sensitive receptors are significantly affected.

Final details of the outcome of the additional air quality and traffic modelling 

assessments and a submission date for the DCO have yet to be confirmed by 

Highways England but is currently considered likely to be  some time in late 2020, 

early 2021.  A further consultation from Highways England on this work and 

proposals is currently expected prior to the submission of the DCO.

Page 42



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 15

2.1.3 Trans-Pennine Impact Report

To aid the consideration of major road schemes subject to a DOC application the 

Planning Inspectorate  encourage Local Authorities  to prepare Local Impact Reports 

(LIR) irrespective of whether the local authority considers the development would 

have a positive or negative impact on their area. This will be considered as part of 

the examination of the scheme by the appointed Planning Inspector. The document 

will set out the impacts of the scheme in the opinion of the Borough Council and 

consider issues such as economic impacts and air quality.

Consultants have been appointed by HPBC and DCC to prepare a Local Impact 

Report (LIR) in response to the anticipated Development. This work is ongoing but 

will inform future versions of this Action Plan 

2.2 Monitoring Results 
The results from the recent monitoring along the Woodhead Road (2015-2019) are 

shown below in Table 1 

Table 1; Nitrogen Dioxide Monitoring Results along the A628 Woodhead Road  

NO2 Annual Mean Concentration (µg/m3) (3)

Site ID
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

**HP2(4) 65.0* 60.2 59.5 - -
HP3 34.5 32.3 31.9 28.7 25.7
HP4 34.3 32.0 34.1 27.7 32.6
HP5 51.8 49.9 50.9 47 37.4
HP6 35.4 32.1 33 32.8 30.0
HP7 19.0 20.9 17.1 -
HP8 38.6 36.2 46.4 39.3 35.5
HP9 23.7 23.0 25.6 22.7 21

HP20 32.0 30.8 38.5 28.4 26.3
HP30 - - - 28.3 27.3
HP31 - - - 37.8 35.9

* Bold indicates exceedance of the 40 µg/m3 AQS
** Does not represent relevant exposure  

Page 43



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 16

Overall, the 2019 results showed a significant improvement in air quality along the 

AQMA compared to the previous year and no exceedances of the AQS were 

observed. 

The highest levels continue to be HP5 within the current AQMA but these reduced by 

approximately 20%.  HP8 continues to be high but was below the AQS. Similarly, 

high levels were also observed at one of the new locations (HP31) outside of the 

AQMA slightly further westbound.  

3 High Peak Borough Council’s Air Quality 
Priorities

3.1 Public Health Context
The Air Quality Indicator in the Public Health Outcomes Framework (England) 

provides further impetus to join up action between the various local authority 

departments which impact on the delivery of air quality improvements.

To help facilitate this, Defra commissioned research to develop a toolkit to help 

local authorities and public health professionals tackle air pollution in their 

area7. The toolkit provides a one-stop guide to the latest evidence on air 

pollution, guiding local authorities to use existing tools to appraise the scale 

of the air pollution issue in its area. It also advises local authorities how to 

appropriately prioritise air quality alongside other public health priorities to 

ensure it is on the local agenda.

Integral to a successful process is the development of communication 

methods for localised air quality and health impact information. Communication 

guides were developed through a series of workshops and interviews. 

Participants included Directors of Public Health, public health professionals, 

local authority air quality managers and members of the public.

 The toolkit comprises the following key guides:

 Getting to grips with air pollution – the latest evidence and techniques;

 Understanding air pollution in your area;

Page 44



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 17

 Engaging local decision-makers about air pollution;

 Communicating with the public on air pollution; and

 Air Pollution: an emerging public health issue: Briefing for elected members.

For HPBC, the fraction of mortality attributable to air pollution is 5%, which is 

similar to the national average of 5.1%. 

3.2 Planning and Policy Context
Local policies contained within the Local Transport Plan for Derbyshire, the Peak 

District National Park Core Strategy and the Local Plan for High Peak all aim to 

reduce traffic across High Peak. These policies are currently being implemented 

through the inclusion of planning conditions.  Environmental Health are a statutory 

consultee on planning applications and routinely monitor all applications for potential 

contribution to air quality to ensure that any potentially unacceptable increases in 

pollutants are identified and mitigated.

The High Peak Local Plan (2016-2031) was formally adopted in April 2016 and 

provides a framework for delivering development for the period 2016 to 2031, by 

setting out the development strategy, strategic and development management 

policies and land designations for the Borough. Several of the previous policies have 

been updated, to reflect a need to improve the environment including air quality: The 

key policies are:

 Policy EQ1: Climate Change: The Council will strive to meet part of the 

Borough's future energy demand through renewable or low-carbon energy 

sources (which could be through a variety of technologies, in line with current 

evidence which identifies the feasibility of these forms of energy across the 

Borough).

 Policy EQ 10 on Pollution Control and Unstable Land states that: “The Council 

will protect people and the environment from unsafe, unhealthy and polluted 

environments. This will be achieved by: Ensuring developments avoid 

potential adverse effects and only permitting developments that are deemed 

(individually or cumulatively) to result in the following types of pollution 

[including air pollution (including odours or particulate emissions)].  If there are 

any remaining potential adverse effects, they should be mitigated to an 

Page 45



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 18

acceptable level by other environmental controls or measures included in the 

proposals.” 

 Policy CF6 Accessibility and Transport; states that Assessments required to 

accompany relevant proposals under Policy CF6 should include consideration 

of the impact of proposals on air quality, 

Derbyshire County Council (DCC) is responsible for producing a statutory Local 

Transport Plan (LTP) which sets out the Council's strategy for transport. Strategy 

between 2011–2026.  The strategy was informed by a strategic environmental 

assessment (SEA) and puts forward several policies and measures under the County 

Council’s jurisdiction that will impact on air quality: 

 Policy TENV3 requires that consideration should be given to the 

appropriateness of providing infrastructure for alternative vehicle technology, 

for example, the installation and operation of charging points for electric/hybrid 

vehicles in new developments.

 Policy TENV4 Ensure transport elements of developments pay sufficient 

account to environmental issues Interventions to support the local economy in 

this and other settlements.

To support mitigation measures by the above policies DCC have developed and 

Investment Protocol: Environmental Mitigation and Enhancement – to incorporate 

environmental mitigation and enhancement in all LTP programme areas

The Peak District National Park Core Strategy includes several policies that will that 

will impact on air quality: 

 Policy T1 of the Peak District National Park Core Strategy aims to reduce the 

need to travel and encourages sustainable transport by making the National 

Park’s characteristics the primary criterion in planning and design decisions, 

by deterring cross-park traffic, and by encouraging sustainable transport (Peak 

District National Park Authority, 2011). 

 Policy LC21 of the Peak District Local Plan (Peak District National Park 

Authority, 2001) on pollution and disturbance has been retained. It is designed 

to prevent development that presents a risk of pollution.

Page 46



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 19

3.3 Source Apportionment
The AQAP measures presented in this report are intended to be targeted towards the 

predominant sources of emissions within High Peak Borough Council’s area, with 

specific focus on those emissions sources which contribute to the exceedances of 

the annual mean AQS objective for NO2 within the AQMAs.

To better understand the contribution of various emissions sources, to the total 

annual mean NO2 concentrations, a provisional source apportionment exercise was 

undertaken. 

The total levels of NO2 recorded at a location can be split into three components

 ▪ The regional background, which the Council is unable to influence;

▪ The local background, which the Council may have some influence over; 

and

▪ Other local sources (explicitly modelled), which the Council may have full 

control over. 

At this stage, the contribution of NO2 from background and other local emissions (e.g. 

coal fires/ boilers/ industry) have not been included as it is considered that the 

primary source of emissions in this location is primarily from transport, with limited (& 

constant) background sources.

To better understand the contribution of various vehicle types, a provisional source 

apportionment exercise was undertaken, for both NOx and NO2, using the Emissions 

Factor Toolkit (v 9). 

The Emissions Factors Toolkit (EFT) is published by Defra and the Devolved 

Administrations. The EFT allows users to calculate road vehicle pollutant emission 

rates for NOx, PM10, PM2.5  and CO2 for a specified year, road type, vehicle speed 

and vehicle fleet composition.

3.3.1 Data Inputs

Traffic data used for the assessment was obtained from the Department of Transport 

(DfT; https://roadtraffic.dft.gov.uk/downloads). EFT set up under ‘Detailed Option 2’. 

To enable source apportionment of Road-NOx emissions, the ‘breakdown by vehicle’ 

and ‘source apportionment’ additional outputs were utilised.

Page 47

https://roadtraffic.dft.gov.uk/downloads


 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 20

Two relevant data points were available, one East to the South and one to the North 

of the AQMA. The data point to the North (7373) was considered to be the most 

representative.

The key data inputs used in the model are shown below;

Key data inputs:  

 Year: 2018;

 Source Id:  7373;

 **Gradient 6% (6% is the highest gradient that can be currently modelled using EFT model)  

 Average Speed 30km/hr (18.5mph)

 Daily Average Traffic Flow; 12, 272 Vehicles  

% Breakdown of Traffic Flow 

 Car = 64.77% 

 LGV = 21.15%; 

 Rigid HGV= 5.94% 

 Articulated HGV= 7.37%; 

 Bus & Coach=0.19%;  

 Motorcycle = 0.58%

3.3.2 Results

The results from the initial source apportionment exercise are shown in figure 3.1 & 

3.2.

The initial split between the Heavy duty Vehicles (HGVs & Buses) and the Lighter 

duty vehicles (Cars, LGV’s etc. ) indicates that although  these only account for  

13.5% of  all vehicles, they contribute to 42% of the NO2 from the road.  

Splitting the results further into vehicle type (figure 3.2) indicates that the majority 

NO2 of emissions are attributed to diesel vehicles (approximately, 96%).  

The above noted, the breakdown of traffic figures provided by the DfT is based on a 

2014 road survey, with data extrapolated to 2018 (by DfT). It would be beneficial to 

undertake a more detailed traffic study to improve the source apportionment work 

Page 48



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 21

and ensure it remains accurate, particularly to identify the age (and nature) of the 

vehicles using the road.

Figure 3.1.  Source of emissions between Light and Heavy Duty Vehicles 

Figure 3.2.  Source of emissions between general Vehicle types  

Page 49



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 22

It is understood that, as a result of the Trans Pennine project, Highways England has 

undertaken further detailed traffic assessments, source apportionment and future 

modelling of potential impacts of the project .  However, despite several requests for 

this traffic data by HPBC and DCC, this has not yet been made available. 

3.4 Required Reduction in Emissions
The specific reduction in emissions required has not yet been calculated as this 

requires the inclusion of regional and background data (considered to be a constant) 

and will also be affected by the implementation of the Trans Pennine upgrade which 

may affect the traffic composition.

 

3.5 Key Priorities
The current results indicate that the largest contributor to NO2 emissions is from 

Diesel Vehicles, predominately HGVs, Eastbound of the AQMA. The impact of these 

emissions is compounded by the location of the crossing on a very steep section, 

which means HGVs (and other vehicles) are producing significant emissions at this 

point. 

Southbound the issue is due more to the close location of the properties to the road 

and around Church Street.   

The proposed measures to tackle these issues have been generally categorised into: 

 Transport, 

 leading by example measures (policy), 

 Education, community and partnership measures 

3.5.1 Transport;

 Highways England 

Highways England is the governmental organisation charged with operating, 

maintaining and improving England's motorways and major A roads, including the 

A628.  The implementation of action measures that would directly affect the A628 

Page 50



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 23

(such as improvements to the crossing) can consequently only be implemented by 

Highways England.  The A628 road management is undertaken by the Highways 

England Yorkshire, Humberside and the North East team.

In addition Highways England is also the authority implementing the Trans-Pennine 

Upgrade Programme (see section 2.1.2) which has the potential to alter traffic flows 

on the A628. The application is being undertaken by the Highways England North 

West team. 

Preliminary discussions between Highways England from the North and West teams 

regarding possible transport mitigation measures took place in early 2020. 

The key conclusions / statements of the meeting were: 

 Highways England (North East)- Competent Authority 

“We have recently completed a review of speed limits on the A64, which has resulted 

in a series of ‘village gateway’ proposals improving consistency and recognition of 

speed limits on the route. This is in line with our Guide to Road Safety Route 

Treatments published in 2018. We are now planning a similar study of the A628. 

Concerns regarding air quality issues and safety at the Old Road junction will be 

added to the planned study. Our current proposal is to start the study for this work 

next year (2021)” As results indicate a general trend of improvement in air quality 

along the A628, this is considered a reasonable time scale to address these issues. 

 Highways England (North West)- TPUP

They are in the process of finalising a detailed updated traffic modelling and transport 

exercise, assessing the current air quality on the AQMA and the impacts of the 

proposed TPUP. Should the results of the updated modelling and assessment 

indicate a future impact on the AQMA, measures will be put forward to address these 

issues.  

The implementation of direct transport measures, therefore, will not commence until 

the publication of these further studies.  This affects the timescale for the full 

adoption of the AQMA. 

Page 51



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 24

 EV Charging Points 

Currently no networks operate any charge points on public operated car parks in the 

High Peak. The NHS has installed some at their facilities and the others are on 

privately owned land. Therefore, the public have very limited options for charging 

EVs when they are visiting or residing in High Peak other than charging their EVs at 

home. 

High Peak Borough Council has been working with Derbyshire County Council, 

Nottingham City Council and BP Chargemaster as part of a D2N2 known as the “Go 

Ultra Low Programme”, which has the aim to bring electric vehicle (EV) charge points 

to the area. 

The installation of Electric Vehicle charge points across the Borough is considered a 

key component in these options.  It will help the public to more easily switch to less 

polluting vehicles by providing the infrastructure to do so. The use of Council car 

parks will demonstrate that High Peak Borough Council is leading by example and 

the publicity will increasing awareness of air quality issues across the local 

community.

Phase 1 of this project has been completed and resulted in the installation of rapid 

charge points for electric vehicles at several Council owned Car parks across the 

Borough, including one in Glossop considered to impact on AQMAs No1 & No2

These are: 

o Municipal Buildings Car Park, Glossop

o Station Road Car Park, Hadfield

o Hope Valley Car Park, Hope

A second Phase has now also been implemented, specifically near high density 

housing where residents may wish to invest in an EV but have limited scope to 

charge their car because of lack of a private garage or driveway, therefore require 

on-street charging.

These are: 

o Bernard street Car park, Glossop

o Miry meadow car park, Chapel en le frith

o Canal street car park, Whaley Bridge and 

Page 52



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 25

o Victoria Park road shops, Fairfield 

o Sylvan car park, Buxton will be complete

The majority of these have now also been installed or are due to be installed in the 
coming autumn of 2020. An example of the EV charge point at Bernard street Car 
park, Glossop is shown in Figure 3.2 below.

 

Figure 3.2.

3.5.2  Leading by example measures
The measures that we will seek to adopt will be developed through policy (section 

3.3). 

The first stage of the new High Peak Local plan review was implemented in the June 

2020 and sought to update the associated policies. Environmental Health have 

proposed that a specific AQ policy is incorporated into the new local plan, to address 

development around AQMAs and also  drive forward improvements in local air quality 

Page 53



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 26

across the borough, minimising exposure to pollution, and to improving the health 

and well-being of the residents. Whilst a policy in itself is unlikely to provide 

immediate solutions to improving air quality, it can ensure that future problems are 

prevented or minimised. 

The proposed policy is:  

Development will be permitted where it can be demonstrated:

1. that it does not lead to significant adverse effects on health, the environment 

or amenity from polluting or malodorous emissions, or dust

2. where a development is a sensitive end-use, that there will not be any 

significant adverse effects on health, the environment or amenity arising from 

existing poor air quality, sources of odour or other emissions to air.

According to the end-use and nature of the area and application, applicants must 

demonstrate that:

a. there is no adverse effect on air quality in an air quality management 

area (AQMA);

b. pollution levels within the AQMA will not have a significant adverse 

effect on the proposed use/users;

c. the development will not lead to the declaration of a new AQMA;

d. the development will not interfere with the implementation of the current 

Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP);

e. any sources of emissions to air, odours and fugitive dusts generated by 

the development are adequately mitigated so as not to lead to loss of amenity 

for existing and future occupants and land uses; and

f. any impacts on the proposed use from existing poor air quality, odour 

and emissions are appropriately monitored and mitigated by the developer.

In addition, new supplementary planning documents have been developed in 

conjunction with the East Midlands Air Quality Network, that is hoped to be formally 

adopted  that details the types of assessments  and appropriate pollution prevention 

or mitigation measures that may be adopted to facilitate development. 

Page 54



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 27

In accordance with climate change policy, DCC have developed a Transport Carbon 

Dioxide Reduction Strategy CO2 reduction project, to reduced CO2 emissions and 

other greenhouse gases (including NOx). 

These include: 

 Sustainable Travel Town Initiatives including a full package of measures to 

promote and encourage more sustainable transport. 

 Business Travel Planning to include encouraging lower carbon HGV 

technologies.

 Encouraging walking and cycling, creation of viable cycle networks which link 

to the wider Greenway network throughout Derbyshire, and promotion and 

marketing of networks, including production of maps.

  Provision of cycle training for adults if required. Smarter driving campaign, 

potential for provision of discounted smarter driving training. 

Vehicle type and fuel choice campaign – awareness raising campaign, 

including providing up-to-date information regarding outlets selling alternative 

fuels.

 Transport Choices education campaign to be investigated.

In addition to policy, the Council are looking to adopt the following lead by example 

initiatives/policies: 

 Replacing the Council vehicles (when required) with ones that are less 

polluting and more fuel efficient, 

 Inclusion of Air Quality, in the Councils procurement framework 

 Adopting an anti-idling policy / eco-driver training for some essential car 

users.

 Securing EV charging points at appropriate places of work

 Continuing to develop initiatives, such as flexible working, that reduces the 

need for employees to use their cars to get to work.

3.5.3 Education, community and partnership measures

HPBC is a member of the Derbyshire Pollution Group (DPG) and Derbyshire Air 

Page 55



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 28

Quality Forum (DAQF), which has encouraged partnership working on local air 
quality management, which is important given the cross boundary nature of air 
pollution. The DAQF comprises of local authority air quality officers, Derby City 
Council, Derbyshire County Council, Public Health England and County Public 
Health staff and other relevant stakeholders as necessary. DAQF is also a member 
of the East Midlands Air Quality Network (EMAQN).  Over the past 12 months the 
Forum has been delivering a comprehensive Action Plan with multi-agency and 
private sector support. The Action Plan is based around six key themes:

 Strategic vision and cross organisational working; 

 Improve access and promote usage of sustainable travel;

 Increase awareness of air quality issues amongst the population and 
strategic leaders;

 Reduce exposure and harm for those with existing health conditions and 
vulnerable groups;

 Planning and Development Control;

 Monitoring.

Specific actions from partners within the forum have included;

 Development of an Educational Video on AQ and measures you can do to 
improve AQ impacts. This is due to be filmed at the end of 2020

 The development of a Draft Derbyshire Low Emissions Infrastructure 
Strategy;

 The development of supplementary planning guidance for local planning 
authorities (in conjunction with the EMAQN);

 Mapping of ebike charging points across the County;

 Development and implementation of strategic plan for cycling to ensure 
continued investment in infrastructure;

 Support of the Healthy Homes project around fuel poverty and affordable 
warmth; 

 Development of an Annual trends report to Derbyshire Health and Wellbeing 
Board;

Page 56



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 29

 Development of Heat Map;

 Promotional activities around clean air day; and

 Awareness raising and training events.

The progress of these indicative measures are reported annually to the DCC Health 

and Wellbeing Board. 

Whilst the measures stated above and in Table 5.1 will help to contribute 
towards improvements in Air Quality the Council anticipates that further additional 
measures not yet prescribed will be developed with the support of key stakeholders 
to address air quality issues across the borough. 

4 Development and Implementation of High 
Peak Borough Council AQAP

4.1 Consultation and Stakeholder Engagement
Prior to finalising this AQAP, we will further consult with Highways England, other 

local authorities, agencies, businesses and the local community to improve local air 

quality.    In addition, we have undertaken the following stakeholder engagement:

 Articles in local media

 Questionnaires distributed directly to households along major roads

 Drop in session at Tintwistle Village Hall

4.2 Steering Group
It is proposed that a Steering Group is set up to discuss the impacts of the AQMA, 

once further details of the proposed impacts of the Trans Pennine upgrade have 

been fully established. It is proposed that the following are included in the steering 

group:

Proposals 

 Highways England 

Page 57



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 30

 HP Councillors  (including Cllr Rob Baker as local member for Tintwistle)

 Public Health Director (DCC)

 Public Health England

 Highway Authority 

 Peak Park 

5 AQAP Measures

Table 5.1 shows a summary of the High Peak Borough Council AQAP measures. 

It contains:

 a list of the actions that form part of the plan

 the responsible individual and departments/organisations who will deliver this 
action

 estimated cost of implementing each action (overall cost and cost to the local 
authority) 

 expected benefit in terms of pollutant emission and/or concentration reduction

 the timescale for implementation

 how progress will be monitored

Page 58



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 31

Table 5.1 ‒ Air Quality Action Plan Measures

Meas
ure 
No.

Measure EU 
Category EU Classification

Organisatio
ns involved 

and 
Funding 
Source

Planning 
Phase

Implementa
tion Phase

Key 
Performance 

Indicator

Reduction in 
Pollutant / 

Emission from 
Measure

Progress to Date
Estimated / 

Actual 
Completion 

Date

Comments / 
Barriers to 

implementation

1

Installation of 
off street EV 

Charging points 
across borough

Promoting 
Low 

Emission 
Transport

Promote Low 
Emission Vehicles

HPBC  / 
DCC/NCC 2019 Provisionally 

2020 TBC Reduced Vehicle 
emissions Near completion 2020

https://www.transp
ortnottingham.com
/driving/ultra-low-

emission-vehicles/

2

Develop 
Electric Vehicle 

Charging 
Strategy for 

borough

Promoting 
Low 

Emission 
Transport

Developing 
infrastructure to 

promote Low 
Emission 

Vehicles, EV 
recharging, Gas 
fuel recharging

HPBC  / 
DCC/NCC Ongoing Ongoing TBC Reduced Vehicle 

emissions Near Ongoing

https://www.transp
ortnottingham.com
/driving/ultra-low-

emission-vehicles/

3

HPBC Core 
Strategy 

PolicyEQ10
Review

Policy 
Guidance 

and 
Developmen

t Control

Other policy HPBC 2020 TBC TBC
Reduced vehicle 

and building 
emissions

Implementation 
on-going

EQ10 
Operational

Review Ongoing
None

4
Peak District 

Core Strategy 
Policy T1

Policy 
Guidance 

and 
Developmen

t Control

Other policy

Peak District 
National 

Park 
Authority

2013 2014 TBC
Reduced vehicle 

and building 
emissions

Implementation 
on-going Operational None

5
Peak District 
Local Plan 

Policy LC21

Policy 
Guidance 

and 
Developmen

t Control

Other policy

Peak District 
National 

Park 
Authority

2000 2001 TBC
Reduced vehicle 

and building 
emissions

Implementation 
on-going Operational None

6 Local Transport 
Plan (LTP3)

Transport 
Planning 

and 
Infrastruct

ure

Other Policy DCC 2011 Ongoing     TBC
Reduced 
Vehicle 

emissions

Implementation 
ongoing 2026

https://www.derbys
hire.gov.uk/transpo
rt-roads/transport-
plans/ltp3/local-
transport-plan-

three.aspx

P
age 59



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 32

7 Workplace 
Travel Planning

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives

Workplace Travel 
Planning DCC Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Air Quality 

Objective

Reduced 
vehicle 

emissions Ongoing

https://www.derby
shire.gov.uk/trans
port_roads/transp
ort_plans/sustaina
ble_travel/default.

asp

8 Workplace 
Travel Planning

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives

Workplace Travel 
Planning DCC Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Air Quality 

Objective

Reduced 
vehicle 

emissions
Ongoing

https://www.derby
shire.gov.uk/trans
port_roads/transp
ort_plans/sustaina
ble_travel/default.

asp

9
Encourage / 

facilitate home-
working

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives

Workplace Travel 
Planning DCC Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Air Quality 

Objective

Reduced 
vehicle 

emissions Ongoing

https://www.derby
shire.gov.uk/worki
ng_for_us/smarter
_travel/default.asp

10 School Travel 
Plans

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives

Workplace Travel 
Planning DCC Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Air Quality 

Objective

Reduced 
vehicle 

emissions
Ongoing

https://www.derby
shire.gov.uk/trans
port_roads/transp
ort_plans/sustaina
ble_travel/travel_s
mart/default.asp & 
https://modeshiftst

ars.org/

11 Promotion of 
cycling

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives

Workplace Travel 
Planning DCC Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Air Quality 

Objective

Reduced 
vehicle 

emissions Ongoing

https://www.derby
shire.gov.uk/leisur
e/countryside/acce
ss/cycling/default.

asp

12 Promotion of 
walking

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives

Workplace Travel 
Planning DCC Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Air Quality 

Objective

educed 
vehicle 

emissions Ongoing

https://www.derby
shire.gov.uk/leisur
e/countryside/acce
ss/walking/default.

asp

13 Car Share 
Derbyshire

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives

Workplace Travel 
Planning DCC Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Air Quality 

Objective

Reduced 
vehicle 

emissions
Ongoing

https://liftshare.co
m/uk/community/d

erbyshire

14
Promote use of 

rail – Community 
rail partnerships

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives

Workplace Travel 
Planning DCC Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Air Quality 

Objective

Reduced 
vehicle 

emissions
Ongoing

https://www.derby
shire.gov.uk/trans
port_roads/public_
transport/communi
ty_rail_partnership

s/default.asp

P
age 60



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 33

15 Public cycle hire 
schemes

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives

Workplace Travel 
Planning DCC Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Air Quality 

Objective

Reduced 
vehicle 

emissions

Ongoing

https://www.derby
shire.gov.uk/leisur
e/countryside/acce
ss/cycling/cycle_hi

re/default.asp

16 Improving Cycle 
network

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives

Workplace Travel 
Planning DCC Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Air Quality 

Objective

Reduced 
vehicle 

emissions Ongoing

https://www.derby
shire.gov.uk/leisur
e/countryside/acce
ss/cycling/default.

asp

17
Strategic 

Environmental 
Assessments

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives

Workplace Travel 
Planning DCC Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Air Quality 

Objective
Reduced 
vehicle 

emissions

Ongoing

https://www.derby
shire.gov.uk/trans
port_roads/transp
ort_plans/ltp3/env
_assessments/def

ault.asp

18
Planning 

Guidance for 
developers

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives

Workplace Travel 
Planning DCC Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Air Quality 

Objective
Reduced 
vehicle 

emissions

Ongoing

https://www.derby
shire.gov.uk/trans
port_roads/transp

ort_plans

19

East Midlands 
Air Quality 
Network

Policy 
Guidance 

and 
Developm

ent 
Control

Regional 
Groups Co- 
coordinating 
Area wide 

Strategies to 
reduce 

emissions and 
improve air 

quality

PHE /East 
Midlands 
Councils

Ongoing Ongoing N/A Reduction in a 
range of 

pollutants

Work Plans / 
Action 
Plans 

Developed

N/A

Air Quality 
Working 
Group 

involves key 
players at 

senior level in 
Public sector 
and voluntary 

sectors

20

East Midlands 
Air Quality 
Network 

Guidance for 
Developers

Policy 
Guidance 

and 
Developmen

t Control

Air Quality 
Planning and 

Policy Guidance

PHE /East 
Midlands 
Councils

2018 Ongoing N/A
Reduction in a 

range of 
pollutants

Establishes a 
range of 

measures 
expected by 
developers 

Reduction in 
a range of 
pollutants 

from 
development

N/A

To be adapted 
locally taken to the 

Planning and 
Health Group on 

completion for 
discussion and 

local adoption and 
implementation

21

Derbyshire Air 
Quality 

Working 
Group

Policy 
Guidance 

and 
Develop
m ent 

Control

Derbyshire 
Groups Co- 
coordinating 
Area wide 

Strategies to 
reduce 

emissions and 

Derby City 
Council/ 

DCC/ District 
Councils

2016
onwards ongoing n/a

Reduction in a 
range of 

pollutants

Work Plans / 
Action Plans 
Developed

Ongoing

Annual report from 
group taken to 

Health and 
Wellbeing Board. 
Annual work plan 
created and a ten 
year Derbyshire 

P
age 61



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 34

improve air 
quality

Air Quality 
Strategy in 
production

23

Raise 
awareness of 

impacts of coal 
and wood 
burning

Public 
Informatio

n

Regional Groups 
Co-ordinating 

programmes to 
develop Area-wide 

Strategies to 
reduce emissions 
and improve air 

quality

HPBC/
Defra Ongoing Ongoing Unknown Unknown Ongoing Ongoing

DEFRA Leaflet 
now on Council 
websites (City 
and County).
In addition, 

DCC Healthy 
Homes 

Programme 
continues to 
offer grant 
funding to 

convert coal 
fires to gas 

central heating 
systems.

24

Inspect under 
the 

Environmental 
Permit regime 
and enforce 
legislation to 

reduce 
combustion 
processes

Environment
al Permits

Introduction/ 
increase of 

environment 
charges through 
permit systems 
and economic 
instruments

HPBC

Completed On-going

Installations 
adhering to 
permits and 

enforcement/p
en alties for 
breaches

By restricting 
emissions from 

industrial 
processes

on-going Continual

This is standard 
HPBC work in 
Environmental 

Protection

25 Air quality 
monitoring

Public 
Information Other

HPBC On-going On-going

# monitoring 
locations and 

On-time 
submittal of 

ASRs

Through 
EHO/public 
awareness

On-going annually Annual

Possibly liaise with 
Defra regarding 

need for additional 
monitoring and/or 

AURN funding.
Consider 

continuous 
monitoring and AQ 
grant application

P
age 62



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 35

Appendix A: Monitoring Results 2019
Table A.1 ‒  Annual Mean Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2)  Monitoring Results for High Peak Borough Council

NO2 Annual Mean Concentration (µg/m3) (3)

Site ID Site Type Monitoring 
Type

Valid Data 
Capture 2019 

(%) (1) 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

HP1 Roadside Diffusion Tube 83 15.1 17.8 22.5 22.9 19.2
HP2(4) Roadside Diffusion Tube - 65.0 60.2 59.5 - -
HP3 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 34.5 32.3 31.9 28.7 25.7
HP4 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 34.3 32.0 34.1 27.7 32.6
HP5 Roadside Diffusion Tube 83 51.8 49.9 50.9 47 37.4
HP6 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 35.4 32.1 33 32.8 30
HP7 Kerbside Diffusion Tube - 19.0 20.9 17.1 - -
HP8 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 38.6 36.2 46.4 39.3 35.5
HP9 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 23.7 23.0 25.6 22.7 21

HP10 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 25.4 26.6 27.1 27.5 25.8
HP11 Roadside Diffusion Tube 83 21.2 22.7 19.9 21.6 20.5
HP12 Roadside Diffusion Tube - 27.0 26.4 28.8 31.5 -
HP13 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 12.1 15.8 12.5 13.8 13.8
HP14 Roadside Diffusion Tube 92 21.8 20.4 25.8 24.1 23
HP15 Roadside Diffusion Tube - - 21.1 26.7 23.7 -
HP16 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 - 23.6 27 25.8 23.9
HP17 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 20.6 19.1 32.8 32.6 31.4
HP18 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 36.4 33.7 37.7 38.1 35.8
HP19 Roadside Diffusion Tube - 21.5 22.1 31.1 27.8 -
HP20 Kerbside Diffusion Tube 100 32.0 30.8 38.5 28.4 26.3

P
age 63



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 36

HP21 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 - - 44.4 41.3 38.9
HP22 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 - - 37.2 33.6 31.3
HP24 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 - - - 29.8 29.4
HP25 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 - - - 53.6 49.2
HP26 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 - - - 34.5 30.8
HP27 Roadside Diffusion Tube 92 - - - 32.7 33.7
HP28 Roadside Diffusion Tube 92 - - - 23 22.5
HP29 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 - - - 30.7 27.5
HP30 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 - - - 28.3 27.3
HP31 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 - - - 37.8 35.9
HP32 Roadside Diffusion Tube 92 - - - 40.3 39.4
HP33 Roadside Diffusion Tube 83 - - - 48.2 44.9
HP34 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 - - - 23.6 26.3
HP35 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 - - - 29.0 29.2
HP36 Roadside Diffusion Tube 83 - - - 32.3 30.8
HP37 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 - - - 25.3 27.3
HP38 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 - - - 27.4 33.3
HP39 Roadside Diffusion Tube 92 - - - 23.0 23.5
HP40 Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 - - - 26.3 27.9
HP41 Roadside Diffusion Tube 75 - - - - 44.4
HP42 Roadside Diffusion Tube 83 - - - - 50.3
HP43 Roadside Diffusion Tube 92 - - - - 34
HP44 Roadside Diffusion Tube 83 - - - - 36.2
HP45 Roadside Diffusion Tube 83 - - - - 28.58
HP46 Roadside Diffusion Tube 83 - - - - 20.8
HP74 Roadside Diffusion Tube 25 - - - - 36.2

☒ Diffusion tube data has been bias corrected

P
age 64



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 37

☒ Annualisation has been conducted where data capture is <75% (none required) 
☒ If applicable, all data has been distance corrected for relevant exposure

Notes:
Exceedances of the NO2 annual mean objective of 40µg/m3 are shown in bold.
NO2 annual means exceeding 60µg/m3, indicating a potential exceedance of the NO2 1-hour mean objective are shown in bold and underlined.
(1) Data capture for the monitoring period, in cases where monitoring was only carried out for part of the year.
(2) Data capture for the full calendar year (e.g. if monitoring was carried out for 6 months, the maximum data capture for the full calendar year is 50%).
(3) Means for diffusion tubes have been corrected for bias. All means have been “annualised” as per Boxes 7.9 and 7.10 in LAQM.TG16 if valid data capture for 
the full calendar year is less than 75%. See Appendix C for details
(4) Average of triplicate diffusion tubes.

P
age 65



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 38

Table A.2 ‒  Details of Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites within High Peak Borough Council

Site ID Site Name Site 
Type

X OS Grid 
Ref

Y OS Grid 
Ref

Pollutants 
Monitored

In 
AQMA?

Distance to 
Relevant 
Exposure 

(m) (1)

Distance 
to kerb of 
nearest 

road (m) (2)

Tube 
collocated 

with a 
Continuous 
Analyser?

Height 
(m)

HP1
Rear of Howard 

Town House, 
Glossop

Roadside 403591 394050 NO2 NO 0.15 5.5 NO 2.7

HP2A Pegasus Crossing 1 Roadside 402585 397407 NO2 NO 56.3 1.7 NO 2.4

HP3 95 Woodhead Road, 
Tintwistle Roadside 402891 397536 NO2 NO 0.07 4.5 NO 2.1

HP4 60 Woodhead Road, 
Tintwistle Roadside 402824 397491 NO2 NO 0.1 2 NO 2

HP5 81 Woodhead Road, 
Tintwistle Roadside 402686 397437 NO2 YES 0.16 4.8 NO 2

HP6 75 Woodhead Road, 
Tintwistle Roadside 402539 397353 NO2 NO 0.05 4.1 NO 2.5

HP7 112 Old Road, 
Tintwistle Roadside 402539 397393 NO2 NO 0.14 0.55 NO 2.4

HP8 34 Church Street, 
Tintwistle Roadside 402240.2 397265 NO2 NO 0.15 2.1 NO 2.4

HP9 8 The Stocks, 
Tintwistle Roadside 402192.4 397274.5 NO2 NO 0.15 9.1 NO 2

HP10 Furness Vale School Roadside 400837 383466 NO2 NO 0.15 4.1 NO 2.3

HP11 Dove Holes School Roadside 407668 378239 NO2 NO 0.15 3.6 NO 2.8

HP12
Fairfield Rd / 
Lightwood Rd 

junction, Buxton
Roadside 406391 373730 NO2 NO 3.2 1.5 NO 2.7

HP13 8 Granby Rd, Buxton Roadside 406581 373419 NO2 NO 0.15 11.2 NO 2

P
age 66



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 39

HP14 Brookfield, Hadfield Roadside 401111 395390 NO2 NO 6.1 1.5 NO 2.5

HP15 131 Woolley Bridge 
Hadfield Roadside 401296 396112 NO2 NO 4.6 1.7 NO 2.7

HP16 10  Woolley Bridge 
Hadfield HP12B Roadside 401221 395993 NO2 NO 1.5 1.4 NO 2.8

HP17 Newtown traffic 
lights (A6) New Mills Roadside 399411 384561 NO2 NO 4.1 1.1 NO 2.7

HP18 Barmoor Clough, 
Dove Holes Roadside 407629 379482 NO2 NO 103.3 2.6 NO 2.5

HP19 Railway Station, 
Buxton Roadside 405884 373715 NO2 NO 13.3 1.7 NO 2.8

HP20
Manchester Rd / 
New Rd junction, 

Tintwistle
Kerbside 401956.7 397279.7 NO2 NO 0.89 0.88 NO 2.6

HP21 Dinting School (A57) Roadside 402060 394343 NO2 NO 0.15 1.6 NO 2.5

HP22 236 High Street 
West, Glossop (A57) Roadside 402418 394220 NO2 NO 0.15 3.1 NO 2.6

HP24 64  High Street East, 
Glossop (A57) Roadside 403794 394089 NO2 NO 2.29 1.42 NO 2.4

HP25
A57 / Dinting Vale / 

Glossop Road (West 
Bound)

Roadside 401797 394508 NO2 NO 2.74 0.62 NO 2.5

HP26
Lampost near 70-72 

Woolley  Bridge  
(East Bound)

Roadside 401025 395670 NO2 NO 0.26 2.27 NO 2.5

P
age 67



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 40

HP27

North of 41 Wooley 
Bridge Road – Tom 

Howley (North 
Bound)

Roadside 401014 395872 NO2 NO 9.48 2.87 NO 2.6

HP28
Near 411 Hadfield 
Road (lamppost) 

(south Bound)
Roadside 401272 395970 NO2 NO 2.84 2 NO 2.6

HP29
10 Manchester Rd 

(row of Houses)  
(West Bound)

Roadside 401215 396967 NO2 NO 0.16 2.39 NO 2.4

HP30 25 Manchester Road 
(East Bound) Roadside 401641 397240 NO2 NO 3.05 2.33 NO 2.5

HP31 58 Manchester Road 
(West Bound) Roadside 401876 397261 NO2 NO 0.35 1.52 NO 2.6

HP32 37 Buxton Road, 
Bridgemont Roadside 401227 382556 NO2 NO 2.07 1.43 NO 2.5

HP33 135 Fairfield Road 
(lamp post) Roadside 406594 373949 NO2 NO 0.2 2.9 NO 2.5

HP34
25 Buxton Road, 

Dove Holes (A6) S-
Bound

Roadside 407541 377764 NO2 NO 0.81 1.92 NO 2.5

HP35 85 Hallsteads, Dove 
Holes (A6) N- Bound Roadside 407677 378326 NO2 NO 0.35 2.77 NO 2.5

HP36
144 Buxton 

Road,Furness Vale 
(A6) N- bound

Roadside 400737 383534 NO2 NO 9.43 1.87 NO 2.6

HP37
81 Buxton Road, 

Furness Vale (A6) S-
bound

Roadside 400682 383623 NO2 NO 2.47 2.27 NO 2.6

P
age 68



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 41

HP38
86 Buxton Road, 

New Town, (A6) N - 
Bound

Roadside 399676 384579 NO2 NO 2.26 1.58 NO 2.6

HP39
79 Buxton Road, 

New Town, (A6) S - 
Bound

Roadside 399716 384578 NO2 NO 3.5 1.95 NO 2.6

HP40
33 Buxton Road, 

New Mills, (A6) S - 
Bound

Roadside 399622 384581 NO2 NO 2.75 2.9 NO 2.5

HP41 22 Fairfield SB Roadside 406405 373760 NO2 NO 0.2 2.13 NO 2.4

HP42 52 Fairfield NB Roadside 406402 373898 NO2 NO 3.06 2.18 NO 2.6

HP43 101 Fairfield (SB) Roadside 406450 373920 NO2 NO 3.64 1.46 NO 2.6

HP44 Bulls Head Fairfield 
NB Roadside 406606 373972 NO2 NO 0.18 1.6 NO 2.6

HP45 117 Buxton road 
Whaley bridge NB Roadside 401081 380736 NO2 NO 0.2 2.97 NO 2.5

HP46 Whaley Bridge 
Primary School NB Roadside 401107 381054 NO2 NO 7.76 2.63 NO 2.6

HP47 Charlesworth ; G&D Roadside 400526 392905 NO2 NO 0.2 0.9 NO 2.6

P
age 69



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 42

Appendix B: Reasons for Not Pursuing Action Plan Measures
Table B.1 ‒ Action Plan Measures Not Pursued and the Reasons for that Decision

Action category Action description Reason action is not being pursued (including 
Stakeholder views)

Transport Measures Further evaluation of road network impacts 
and implementation of mitigation measures 

Action is temporarily on hold until Highways England have 
completed updated modelling on the proposed impact of the 
Trans Pennine upgrade scheme   

P
age 70



 High Peak Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2020 43

Glossary of Terms
Please add a description of any abbreviation included in the AQAP – An example is 

provided below.

Abbreviation Description

AQAP Air Quality Action Plan - A detailed description of measures, 
outcomes, achievement dates and implementation methods, 
showing how the local authority intends to achieve air quality limit 
values’

AQMA Air Quality Management Area – An area where air pollutant 
concentrations exceed / are likely to exceed the relevant air quality 
objectives. AQMAs are declared for specific pollutants and 
objectives

AQS Air Quality Strategy

ASR Air quality Annual Status Report

Defra Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

EU European Union

LAQM Local Air Quality Management

NO2 Nitrogen Dioxide

NOx Nitrogen Oxides

PM10 Airborne particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 10µm 
(micrometres or microns) or less

PM2.5 Airborne particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 2.5µm 
or less

… …

Page 71



 High Peak Borough Council

Page 72


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Climate Change Update
	5 Procurement Strategy Review - Environmental Priorities
	6 Air Quality Management Update on the AQAP Woodhead Road (A628) Tintwistle
	Appendix


